
126 

HUNDRED AND SECOND MEETING 

Held at Lake Success, New York, 
on Friday, 1 August 1947, at 11 a.m. 

Acting President: Mr. Jan PAPANEK 
(Czechoslovakia). 

34. Continuation of the discussion of the 
Interim Report of the second session of 
the Preparatory Committee of the 
United Nations Conference on Trade 
and Employment (documents E/4691 

and E/504): discussion of the amend
ed draft resolution No. 3 (document 
E/AC.6/14) 

Mr. HOLMES (United Kingdom) stated that 
his Government believed very strongly that the 
matter of full voting rights for all participants 
in the forthcoming Havana Conference was of 
great importance to the success of the Interna
tional Trade Organization. 

He pointed out that the Council was at pre
sent considering the status of the countries to 
be invited to the Conference, and not the pro
visions to be contained in the proposed ITO 
charter regarding the status of members, which 
was a matter for the Conference itself to deter
mine. It was precisely because the United King
dom Government felt that the Conference should 
be given every chance of success in shaping the 
charter on the provisions of which would depend 
the success or failure of the future economic sys
tem of the world, that his delegation insisted on 
the fullest participation of all countries in
terested. 

He observed that the primary objection to 
granting voting rights to all Conference partici
pants had been based on the premise that 
United Nations Members only should have that 
privilege, despite the hope that the ITO would 
become a specialized agency of the United Na
tions and embrace non-member as well as Mem
ber States. 

The representative of the United Kingdom 
reiterated that the establishment of the ITO on 
the widest possible basis and the success of that 
organization were of the highest importance to 
the world. The problems with which it would 
have to deal were exceptionally complex and 
any gaps in the system of international trade 
and employment which it was designed to cover 
could ill be afforded. 

- He observed that it was the ultimate aim of 
the ITO to encompass as many nations as pos
sible in order to ensure that the maximum 
number of units would agree to refrain from 

1 See Annex 8. 

CENT-DEUXIEME SEANCE 

Tenue a Lake Success, New-York, 
le vendredi 1er aout 1947, a 11 heures. 

President par interim: M. Jan PAP ANEK 
(Tchecoslovaquie). 

34. Suite de Ia discussion sur le rapport 
provisoire de Ia deuxieme session de 
Ia Commission p~eparatoire de Ia Con
ference des Nations Unies sur le com
merce et l'emploi (documents E/4691 

et E/504): discussion du texte modi
fie du projet de resolution No 3 (do
cument E/AC.6/14) 

M. HoLMES (Royaume-Uni) declare que son 
Gouvernement croit tres fermement que !'octroi 
du droit de vote a tousles pays qui participeront 
ala future Conference de La Havane est de !a plus 
haute importance pour le succes de !'Organisa
tion internationale du commerce. 

II fait observer que le Conseil etudie actuelle
ment le statut des pays qui seront invites a Ia 
Conference et non les dispositions relatives 
au statut des Etats membres destines a figurer 
dans Ie projet de charte de I'OIC; sur cette 
derniere question, c'est a la Conference elle
meme qu'il appartiendra de prendre une deci
sion. C'est precisement parce que le Gouverne
ment du Royaume-Uni estime qu'il faut donner 
a la Conference toutes les chances de reussir 
lorsqu'elle elaborera Ia charte dont les disposi
tions assureront le succes ou l'echec du futur 
systeme economique mondial, que sa delegation 
insiste sur la participation pleine et entiere de 
tous les pays interesses. 

II fait observer que Ia principale objection 
elevee contre !'octroi du droit de vote a tous les 
participants a la Conference a ete fondee sur le 
principe que seuls les Etats Membres des Nations 
U nies devraient jouir de ce privilege, en depit 
du fait que l'on espere voir l'OIC devenir une 
institution specialisee et comprendre des Etats 
non membres aussi bien que des Etats Membres. 

Le representant du Royaume-Uni repete que 
l'etablissement de I'OIC sur Ia base la plus large 
possible et Ie succes de cette organisation sont 
de Ia plus grande importance pour Ie monde. Les 
problemes qu'elle aura a traiter sont exception
nellement complexes et il serait eminemment 
facheux qu'elle laissil.t subsister certaines lacunes 
dans le domaine du commerce et de l'emploi 
internationaux dont elle est destinee a s'occuper. 

II fait observer que le but ultime de l'OIC 
consiste a englober le plus grand nombre de 
nations possible, afin de garantir qu'un maximum 
d'Etats accepte de renoncer a des pratiques qui 

1 Voir l'annexe 8. 



127 

practices which inhibited world trade. He felt 
that countries not members of the United Na~ 
tions would be reluctant to accept an invitation 
to participate in a conference at which they were 
not accorded full and equal rights, especially 
since future participation in the ITO would 
entail certain responsibilities that a nation's gov
ernment and public opinion would find it diffi
cult to accept, unless that nation had played a 
full part in the preliminary deliberations. 

There was surely no question of establishing 
two types of ITO membership, one voting and 
the other non-voting, for unless full privileges 
were granted to all nations, non-members of the 
United Nations would not consider joining the 
ITO. The matter should be decided on the basis 
of merit. Since countries not members of the 
United Nations and non-sovereign territories 
autonomous in the matters of external trade 
were being invited to the Conference because of 
the advice and help they could contribute to it, 
he felt that it would be regrettable if voting 
rights were not granted to all the countries in
vited. 

Mr. THORP (United States of America) felt 
that the United Kingdom representative's un
derlying assumption that the problems of the 
Conference could be isolated from general 
United Nations matters was unfounded. He 
stated that it was impossible to make exceptions 
to general rules without setting up unfortunate 
precedents, and observed that if such an excep
tion was made in regard to the Conference on 
the basis of its importance, possible exemption 
from general rules of all future conferences would 
have to be weighed by the Council. 

Since there were various reasons for which 
certain countries were not members of the 
United Nations, Mr. Thorp thought it advisable 
not to grant those countries voting rights. 

Since many countries which had not partici
pated in the formative stages of the Interna
tional Monetary Fund, the International Bank 
and UNESCO had subsequently joined those 
organizations, he felt that the United Kingdom 
representative's assumption that countries which 
were not accorded voting rights would not subse
quently join the ITO unfounded. He suggested 
that Member nations could take full heed of the 
opinions of the non-voting participants at the 
Conference. 

paralysent le commerce mondial. II estime que 
les Etats non membres des Nations Unies hesite
raient a accepter !'invitation de participer a une 
conference ou ils ne se verraient pas accorder 
la pleine egalite des droits, d'autant plus que 
la participation future a l'OIC entrainerait 
certaines responsabilites que le gouvernement 
et !'opinion publique d'une nation trouveraient 
difficile d'accepter, au cas ou cette nation n'au
rait pas pris une part entiere aux deliberations 
preliminaires. 

II ne peut certainement pas etre question 
d'instituer deux categories de membres de 
l'OIC, les uns votant et les autres ne votant pas, 
car si la totalite des privileges n'etait pas 
accordee a toutes les nations, les Etats non 
membres de !'Organisation des Nations Unies 
n'envisageraient pas d'adherer a l'OIC. C'est 
en se fondant sur le merite qu'une decision doit 
etre prise en la matiere. Du moment que des 
Etats non membres des Nations Unies ainsi que 
des territoires non souverains, autonomes en 
matiere de commerce exterieur, vont etre invites 
a la Conference, en raison des avis et de l'aide 
dont ils peuvent la faire beneficier, le represen
tant du Royaume-Uni estime qu'il serait regret
table de ne pas accorder le droit de vote a tousles 
pays invites. 

M. THORP (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) estime 
que la supposition admise implicitement par le 
representant du Royaume-Uni et selon laquelle 
les problemes de la Conference pourraient etre 
isoles de l'ensemble des problemes de !'Organisa
tion des Nations Unies, est peu fondee. II est 
impossible de faire des exceptions aux regles 
generales sans creer de dangereux precedents 
et si une telle exception etait faite en ce qui 
concerne la Conference, en raison de !'importance 
de cette derniere, le Conseil se mettrait dans le 
cas d'avoir a prendre une decision au sujet 
d'exceptions eventuelles au reglement general 
de toutes les conferences futures. 

Du moment que, pour diverses raisons, cer
tains pays ne soot pas membres des Nations 
Unies, M. Thorp estime qu'il est opportun de ne 
pas leur accorder le droit de vote. 

Etant donne que de nombreux pays qui 
n'avaient pas participe aux etapes preliminaires 
de la creation du Fonds monetaire international, 
de la Banque internationale et de l'UNESCO 
ont, par la suite, adhere a ces organisations, le 
representant des Etats-Unis estime que la suppo
sition du representant du Royaume-Uni, selon 
laquelle les pays a qui l'on n'accorderait pas le 
droit de vote n'adhereraient pas par la suite a 
l'OIC, est peu fondee. II propose que les Etats 
Membres tiennent le plus grand compte de 
l'opinion des pays qui participeront a la Confe
rence~sans disposer du droit de vote. 



128 

Mr. RADIMSKY (Czechoslovakia) proposed 
that the Council should deal with the question 
of' invitations to sovereign States separately 
from that of invitations to non-sovereign terri
tories, 

Mr. LUNDE (Norway) felt that to give non
member countries rights equal to those of Mem
bers of the United Nations was to establish a 
dangerous precedent. In other connexions there 
had already been a tendency on the part of 
specialized agencies to make themselves more or 
less independent of the general policies of the 
United Nations. That consideration was to 
some extent relevant to the present discussion. 

A further minor consideration was the fact 
that it would be unfair to extend the same rights 
to countries which would not be sharing in the 
expenses of the Conference as to the Members 
of the United Nations who would be bearing 
those expenses. 

Mr. MARTIN (Canada) thought the question 
involved a matter of principle and for that 
reason, his delegation had voted in the Com
mittee against giving full voting rights to non
member States. 

He felt that in deciding the problem, the 
Council ought not to consider it in the light of 
the atmosphere of the moment, but in the light 
of what it meant to the integrity and effective
ness of the United Nations as a whole and, 
consequently, to that of the Council. 

Mr. Martin pointed out that the main argu
ment adduced by the representative of the 
United Kingdom was that in view of the charac
ter of the proposed organization in relation to 
world trade, it would be regrettable if the Coun
cil did anything which might preclude full parti
cipation and ultimate membership in the organ
ization of non-member States. If that were the 
case, which he could hardly believe, he thought 
that the Council ought to consider whether or 
not the disadvantages of those countries not 
participating were more important than the 
principle just expressed by the representative of 
Norway. 

He thought there was a dangerous tendency 
developing in the Council and that it could 
easilY, become a mere filing agency. In his 
opinion, the Council was intended to be a co
ordinating agency, but he doubted whether it 
was developing that function. The Council 
would lose prestige and efficacy, if it did not 
exercise more than mere moral authority on the 
specialized agencies. 

He pointed out that when the Economic and 
Social Council, at its first session, had supported 

M. RADIMSKY (Tchecoslovaquie) propose que 
le Conseil traite separement la question des 
invitations aux Etats souverains et celle des 
invitations aux territoires non souverains. 

M. LUNDE (Norvege) estime qu'en donnant 
aux Etats non membres des droits egaux a ceux 
des Membres des Nations Unies, on etablirait 
un precedent dangereux. A d'autres egards, les 
institutions specialisees ont deja montre une 
tendance a se rendre plus ou moins independan
tes de Ia politique generale de !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies. Cette consideration concerne 
dans une certaine mesure la presente discussion. 

II existe une autre consideration, secondaire 
il est vrai: c'est qu'il serait injuste d'accorder 
les memes droits aux pays qui ne participeront 
pas aux depenses de la Conference et aux Etats 
Membres de !'Organisation des Nations Unies 
qui supporteront ces depenses. 

M. MARTIN (Canada) estime qu'il y a Ia une 
question de principe et c'est pour cette raison 
que sa delegation a vote, au sein de la Commis
sion, contre l'octroi du droit de vote aux Etats 
non membres. 

II pense qu'en prenant une decision sur cette 
question, le Conseil ne doit pas juger selon 
!'atmosphere du moment, mais en tenant compte 
de ce que sa decision signifiera pour l'integrit€ 
et l'efficacite de !'Organisation des Nations Unies 
consideree dans son ensemble et, par voie de 
consequence, pour celles du Conseil. 

M. Martin fait observer que le principal argu
ment avance par le representant du Royaume
Uni consiste a dire qu'en raison du caractere que 
revetira la future organisation a l'egard du com
merce mondial, il serait regrettable que le Conseil 
prit une mesure qui soit de nature a empecher 
la participation pleine et entiere des Etats non 
membres et finalement leur adhesion a !'Orga
nisation. Si cette hypothese se realisait, ce qui 
lui semble difficilement admissible, M. Martin 
estime que le Conseil devrait examiner si les 
inconvenients dus a la non-participation de ces 
pays presentent une importance plus grande 
que le principe que vient d'exprimer le represen
tant de la Norvege. 

II estime qu'une tendance dangereuse se fait 
jour au sein du Conseil et que ce derl}ier risque 
de devenir une simple institution d'enregistre
ment. A son avis, le Conseil etait destine a 
constituer une institution de coordination, mais 
illui semble douteux que cette fonction fasse des 
progres. Le Conseil perdrait son prestige et son 
efficacite s'il se contentait d'exercer une simple 
autorite morale sur les intitutions specialisees. 

II fait observer que lorsque le Conseil econo
mique et social a appuye, au cours de sa premiere 



129 

the United States motion and decided to call 
the Conference, importance had been attached 
to the fact that the Conference should be con
voked under the auspices, not of a single Power, 
but of the United Nations. He felt that the 
Council would be going back upon its original 
intention if, in respect of a future specialized 
agency of the United Nations, it granted non
member States the full voting rights which were 
at present only extended to Members of the 
United Nations. It would be establishing a 
dangerous principle to adopt, in the present 
case, a course of action which had not been fol
lowed in regard to the World Health Organiza
tion or in other similar cases. 

Moreover, he believed such action to be 
against the provisions of the Charter, and called 
the attention of the members of the Council to 
the observations made by the Assistant Secre
tary-General for Legal Affairs in the report of 
the Committee of the Whole of the Economic 
Commission for Asia and the Far East (docu· 
ment E/491), on the question of full member
ship of a subordinate organ of the Council.l 
Although the conditions were not the same, he 
felt that similar principles were involved. He 
stated that in consequence he had to take the 
same position as he had taken in the Committee. 

Mr. NEHRU (India) referred to the remarks of 
the representative of Canada and his interpreta
tion of the provisions of the Charter, and stated 
that, in his opinion, the circumstances of the 
present case were entirely different from those 
pertaining to the case of the Economic Com
mission for Asia and the Far East. In the latter 
ca~e, the Council was concerned with the ques
tion of full membership of a subordinate organ 
of the Council and not with the question of 
whether non-member States should be invited 
to an international conference, and if so, in 
what capacity. 

He felt that the Council should do everything 
in its power to make the Conference a success 
and should not make any decisions based on 
considerations of probable repercussions on the 
prestige or future of the Council. Since the 
object of the Conference was to promote pro
duction, expansion of trade, consumption and 
employment, it was of great importance to se
cure the full co-operation of every interested 
nation. He tought, therefore, that the Council 
would be adding to its prestige if it gave the 
Charter a more liberal interpretation and in this 
case gave full voting rights to invitees, in order 
to make the Conference a success, providing 

1 See Supplement No.6. 

session, la proposition des Etats-Unis eta decide 
de convoquer Ia Conference, on a attache une 
certaine importance au fait que cette Conference 
serait convoquee sous les auspices, non d'une 
seule Puissance, mais de !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies. M. Martin estime que le Conseil 
reviendrait sur son intention initiale si, en ce qui 
concerne une future institution specialisee de 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies, il accordait 
aux Etats non membres le droit de vote complet 
qui n'appartient, jusqu'ici, qu'aux Etats Mem
bres de !'Organisation des Nations Unies. On 
etablirait un principe dangereux en adoptant 
dans le present cas une ligne de conduite qui 
n'a ete suivie ni pour !'Organisation mondiale 
de la sante ni pour d'autres cas analogues. 

En outre, M. Martin estime qu'une telle 
decision serait contraire aux dispositions de la 
Charte, et il attire !'attention des membres du 
Conseil sur les observations formulees par le 
Secretaire general adjoint charge des affaires 
juridiques dans le rapport de la Commissio11 
economique pour l'Asie et !'Extreme-Orient 
siegeant en comite (document E/491)1, observa
tions relatives a la qualite de membre (avec 
t:::ms les droits inherents a cette qualite) d'un 
organe subordonne au Conseil. Bien que les 
condition~ ne soient pas les memes, le represen
tant du Canada estime que des principes analo
gues sont en jeu. II declare qu'il doit done 
adopter Ia meme position que celle qu'il a prise 
au sein de la Commission. 

M. NEHRU (Inde), revenant sur les observa
tions du representant du Canada et sur ,son 
interpretation des dispositions de la Charte, 
declare qu'a son a"Vis les circonstances sont, dans 
le cas actuel, absolument differentes de celles 
qui existaient a la Commission economique pour 
l'Asie et !'Extreme-Orient. Dans ce dernier cas, 
le Conseil etait saisi de la question de Ia qualite 
de membre d'un organe subordonne au Conseil 
et non de Ia question de s:tv<:>ir si des Etats non 
membres doivent etre invites a une conference 
internationale et, dans !'affirmative, a quel titre. 

II estime que le Conseil devrait faire tout ce 
qui est en son pouvoir pour assurer le succes 
de la Conference et qu'il ne devrait pas prendre 
de .decisions en se fondant sur les repercussions 
probables qu'elles auront sur le prestige ou sur 
l'avenir du Conseil. Puisque la Conference a 
pour objet de favoriser Ia production, ainsi que 
le developpement des echanges commerciaux, 
de Ia consommation et de l'emploi, il est tres 
important de s'assurer Ia cooperation pleine 
et entiere de toutes les nations interessees. 
M. Nehru estime done que le Conseil ajouterait 
a son prestige s'il donnait de la Charte une inter
pretation plus liberale, c'est-a-dire, dans le cas 

1 Voir le supplement No 6. 



130 

there were no explicit provisions to the con
trary in the Charter. 

The PRESIDENT informed the CounCil that a 
telegram addressed to the Chairman of the Pre
paratory Committee had been received. Inas
much as the telegram dealt with the problem 
under discussion, he felt that in the absence of 
the Chairman of the Preparatory Committee, 
it should be read to the Council. 

At the request of the President, the AssisTANT 
SECRETARY-GENERAL in charge of economic 
affairs read the telegram which stated that 
the Chairman's committee of the Preparatory 
Committee had adopted unanimously a resolu
tion strongly urging the Council to accord full 
voting rights to all States invited to participate 
in the Conference, and pointing out in particular 
that, if such rights were not accorded, Pakistan, 
which had been recognized as entitled to sign 
the general agreement on tariffs and trade, 
would not be permitted to vote in the Con
ference. 

The PRESIDENT stated that he had received a 
proposal from the representative of Czecho
slovakia asking that resolutions 4 and 61 should 
be voted upon separately. 

Decision: The Czechoslovak proposal was re
jected by three votes to two with thirteen abstentions. 

The PRESIDENT called for a vote on resolu
tion 31 as amended in the Economic Committee 
and resolutions 4, 5, 6 and 8.1 

Decisions: 

1. Resolution 3 was adopted by eight votes to 
four with six abstentions. 

2. Resolutions 4, 5, 6 and 8 were adopted 
unanimously. 

The PRESIDENT called for a vote on the pro
posal of the Indian delegation contained in docu
ment E/504.2 

Decision: The Indian proposal was adopted 
by six votes to four with eight abstentions. 

The meeting rose at 1 p.m. 
----

1 Having received the above mentioned telegram from 
the Preparatory Committee, the Council approved the 
texts of the resolutions submitted in document E/ AC.6/14 
with the exception of the clause in resolution 3 stating 
"Having noted that the Preparatory Committee makes no 
recommendation on the question of voting right at this 
Conference." The text of all resolutions referred to appear 
in Resolutions adopted by the Economic and Social Council 
during its fifth session, resolution 62 (V), pages 1 to 3. 

• Ibid., page 3. 

present, s'il accordait, pour assurer le succes 
de Ia Conference, Ia pleine egalite des droits aux 
Etats invites, a condition que la Charte ne con
tienne aucune disposition explicitement con
traire. 

Le PRESIDENT annonce au Conseil qu'un 
tel€~gramme adresse au President de Ia Commis
sion preparatoire est arrive. Ce tel€~gramme 
traitant du probleme dont l'examen est en cours, 
il estime qu'en !'absence du President de Ia 
Commission preparatoire, lecture devrait etre 
faite au Conseil. 

A Ia demande du President, le SECRETAIRE 
GENERAL ADJOINT charge des affaires ec : nomi
ques lit Ie telegramme dans lequel il est dit que Ie 
comite du President de Ia Commission prepara
toire a adopte a l'unanimite une resolution de
mandant instamment au Conseil d'accorder 
I'egalite des droits en matiere de vote a tous les 
Etats invites a participer a la Conference et 
faisant notamment observer que, si ce droit 
n'etait pas accorde, le Pakistan, dont le droit de 
signer !'accord general sur Ies tarifs douaniers 
et le commerce a ete reconnu, ne serait pas auto
rise a voter a Ia Conference. 

Le PRESIDENT declare qu'il a n:?<;u une proposi
tion du representant de Ia Tchecoslovaquie 
demandant que l'on vote separement sur les 
resolutions 4 et 61. 

Decision: La proposition tchecoslovaque est 
rejetee par trois voix contre deux, avec treize 
abstentions. 

Le PRESIDENT met aux voix Ia resolution 31 

dans Ie texte amende par Ie Comite des affaires 
economiques, ainsi que Ies resolutions 4, 5, 6 et 
81. 

Decisions: 

1. La resolution 3 est adoptee par huit" voix 
contre quatre, avec six abstentions. 

2. Les resolutions 4, 5, 6 et 8 sont adoptees a 
l' unanimite. 

Le PRESIDENT met aux voix Ia propositi:m de 
Ia delegation de l'Inde contenue dans Ie docu
ment E/5042

• 

Decision: La proposition del' Inde est adoptee 
par six voix contre quatre, avec huit abstentions. 

La seance est levee a 13 heures. 
1 Ayant re!;u de Ia Commission preparatoire le tete

gramme mentionne ci-dessus, le Conseil a approuve le 
texte des resolutions soumises dans le document E/ AC. 
6/14 a !'exception du paragraphe de la resolution 3 ainsi 
con!;u: "Ayant pris note que la Commission preparatoire 
ne formule aucune recommandation sur la question des 
droits de vote a cette Conference." Le texte de toutes les 
resolutions en question figure dans les Resolutions adoptees 
par le Conseil economique et social pendant sa cinquieme 
session, resolution 62 (V), pages 1 a 3. 

2 Ibid., page 3. 




